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Date:   May-7-19 
To:  Bidders for Norfolk County Bid No. PW-E-19-45 
  Simcoe NE Well Construction 
From:  Scott Zerbes, Project Manager, Public Works 

Scott.zerbes@norfolkcounty.ca 
Subject:  Addendum No. 2 (12 pages) 

ADDENDUM No. 2 
This Addendum shall form part of the Contract Documents.  

The Bidders should acknowledge receipt of this Addendum on the Submission 
Form – Appendix A.  

 
DELETE:  
APPENDIX H - A6. Geophysical Logging of the Pilot Hole 
 
REPLACE WITH: 
REVISED APPENDIX H - A6. Geophysical Logging of the Pilot Hole 
Upon completion of the pilot hole, the hole is to be geophysically logged to a minimum 
depth of 1.0 m (3.3 ft) below the base of the aquifer. If the geophysical logging 
equipment cannot reach this required depth, re-drill the hole as necessary until 
geophysical logs are obtained to this specified logging depth. Logs must include natural 
gamma ray, electrical resistivity and/or conductivity, and, if possible, hole caliper. 
Graphs of the geophysical logs are to be submitted to the Engineer within five business 
days following completion of the logging. 
Payment for this item shall be lump sum as stated in the Schedule of Items and Prices. 
 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 

1. Question:   
Appendix H A6 – why are neutron and near & far density logs required?  Both 
logs require a nuclear source and there are very few companies in Ontario 
that offer that service.  It will be almost impossible to coordinate the 
completion of those logs within the drilling schedule, unless the County is 
prepared to pay for standby time for an undetermined period while waiting for 
the geophysical contractor to fit this work into their schedule. 
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Answer:  
Refer to deletion and addition to Appendix H, Section A6 above. 
 

2. Question:   
Appendix H A9 – are you asking that both the dummy fit test and the 
alignment test be carried out? 
 
Answer:  
Yes. 
 

3. Question:   
Appendix H A10 – the OGWA has been informed by the Ontario Ministry of 
the Environment that a PTTW is required for well development if the “taking” 
exceeds 50,000 L in any day.  The maximum test rate of 400 IGPM (30.3 L/s) 
allows for less than 28 minutes of development per day before a PTTW is 
required.  Has an application for a PTTW been submitted and, if so, have the 
dates requested included the period for well development? 
 
Answer:  
The County is responsible for obtaining the required Permit to Take Water 
(PTTW) from the Ontario Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and 
Parks for all groundwater withdrawals expected under this project.  A copy of 
the PTTW will be provided to the Contractor prior to well development. 
 

4. Question:   
Appendix H B1 – a PTTW is required to complete 5 x 10 minute periods of 
stop-start pumping at 30.3 L/s 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Answer 3. 
 

5. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – the provision of temporary power for the testing will require 
an Electrical Safety Authority inspection of each generator set up prior to 
startup.  A copy of the notice from ESA in this regard has been attached. 
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Answer:  
Acknowledged.  Note, a copy of the document received from the bidder is not 
being attached to the addendum.  
 

6. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – What is the reason for requiring electromagnetic flow 
meters?  We have never seen this requirement in a tender in the past and do 
not understand why mechanical flow meters are not acceptable. 
 
Answer:  
Electromagnetic flow meters are required for this project.  This choice has 
been made by Norfolk County and their Engineer based on past experiences 
and confidence in the accuracy of electromagnetic flow meters during similar 
pumping tests.  Accurate measurement and control of pumping rates and 
pumped volumes are required as a Condition of the PTTW and will be a 
critical aspect of the analysis of the testing results. 
 

7. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – we suggest that the requirement for all wells monitored 
during the test to be equipped with PVC drop tubes be added to the 
specification.  This will greatly reduce the chance that a transducer drops to 
the bottom of the well.  Inclusion of this requirement will ensure that everyone 
is pricing the same thing. 
 
Answer:  
The Contractor will be responsible for ensuring any data logger used in a test 
production well and any other water well can be readily and safely installed 
and removed, with minimal risk of becoming entangled in pumping equipment 
and/or being dropped into the well. 
 

8. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – Is there a minimum time for transducer water level logging 
before the start of the pumping test? 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Appendix H, Section B3. Pumping Tests, General; paragraph 2. 
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9. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – What is the frequency of transducer water level logging?  It 
is important to know if it is necessary to download any or all of the 
transducers during the test period, including the two week period following 
pumping. 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Appendix H, Section B3. Pumping Tests, Aquifer Performance Test; 
paragraph 5.  A minimum interval of two minutes is anticipated. 
 

10. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – is a permit required to discharge into Davis Creek?  If so, 
we assume that the County will look after getting it. 
 
Answer:  
The County will be responsible for obtaining any required permits for pumping 
and discharging water from the test production wells.  Copies of permits will 
be provided to the Contractor prior to well development. 
 

11. Question:   
The existing test well does not meet the requirement of Section 13(8) of 
O.Reg. 903 as the top of casing is less than 40 cm above the highest point of 
the ground surface within 3 m radially from the casing (it is approximately 20 
cm above the elevation of the path beside the well).  Does the County want 
this well casing extended for compliance with the regulation? 
 
Answer:  
This is outside the scope of work for this tender. 
 

12. Question:   
As noted in Item C2 of the bid form, it will be necessary to cut off the steel 
plate currently welded on the existing test well prior to carrying out any testing 
of that well and replace it afterward.  Do any of the wells proposed for 
transducer installation have welded steel plates that require removal and 
replacement following this test? 
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Answer:  
Two other on-site test wells completed with steel plates are expected to 
require additional monitoring ports to accommodate installation of the data 
loggers.  The steel plates on these wells are not expected to require removal 
and replacement.  The condition of the top of any off-site private water wells 
that will be included in the monitoring program is unknown at the present 
time. 
 

13. Question:   
Appendix H B3 – Who is responsible for contacting home owners and 
coordinating the installation and removal of transducers in residential wells, 
access for manual water level measurements and, if necessary, downloading 
of transducers during the test period   
 
Answer:  
Refer to Appendix H, Section B3. Pumping Tests, General; paragraphs 2 
and 3. 
 

14. Question:   
The specification states the following in Appendix H A8 – The discharge may 
be subject to the approval of the Long Point Region Conservation Authority, 
and/or Norfolk County, as appropriate. Approvals will be obtained by the 
Engineer following notification by the Contractor of this requirement.  Why 
isn’t the requirement for this permit known at this stage of the bidding 
process?  It should not be up to the contractor to notify the County and 
Engineer that one is needed.  If the permit is required and is not in place 
already, we won’t know when the project can start since the amount of time 
required to obtain the permit is unknown.  In addition, conditions in such a 
permit would likely place restrictions on how water generated at the site is 
managed and could have a huge impact on pricing.  I don’t see how this 
tender can close until the permit and any conditions it contains is made 
available for all contractors to review and build into their price.  This could 
also impact a potential bidders ability to obtain bonding. 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Answer 10.  Norfolk County is currently working through the permit 
process. 
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15. Question:   
Project Schedule and Liquidated Damages question – can it be assumed that 
all time associated with waiting for any permits to be issued after completion 
of all well drilling activities will not count toward the 55 working day schedule? 
 
Answer:  
Yes. 
 

16. Question:   
Is there any other pumping data for the existing test well?  According to the 
bid documents for Norfolk County RFP PW-E-07-075 Engineering Services 
for Simcoe/Waterford/Port Rowan Groundwater Investigation, a 3 rate step 
test and a 72-hour constant rate pumping test were to be performed on the 
existing test well (Well Tag No. A05156).  Since it is reasonable to assume 
that the work was carried out, the data should be available.  This information 
is very important in sizing pumps, motors and generators for the testing 
required for this tender.  One of the potential bidders of the current tender 
performed the initial work in 2009 and, if the information is not shared with all 
bidders, they have been provided an unfair advantage. 
 
Answer:  
The County’s Groundwater Engineering Consultant has advised that the 
information provided on the Well Drilling Record for A05156 contains the 
necessary information to properly size the pump required. 
 

17. Question:   
The trail will be posted as closed during the contract period, and the well sites 
will be fenced in, is there a requirement to protect or fence the discharge 
piping from the wells to the discharge point? 
 
Answer:  
There is no requirement to fence the discharge piping beyond the well site.  
The discharge piping shall be maintained by the Contractor in good condition 
with minimal leaks during all pumping periods, to the satisfaction of the 
County (As per Section 5.10). 
 
 



   Rev. 06.17 
FO-153 

 

Page 7 of 12 
 

Accessible formats and communication supports available upon request. 

18. Question:   
Is there any objection to running both pumps during the long-term test with 
one generator and having a backup available? 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Appendix H, Section B3. Pumping Tests, General; paragraph 4.  The 
approximate distance from the existing production well to the work site of the 
new production well is 300 metres.  It was therefore expected that two 
generators would be required. 
 

19. Question:   
How as contractors are we to interpret section 1.5 in the RFT. This section 
indicates a non exclusivity clause applies, are we to assume the contract 
could be divided among contractors? 
 
Answer:  
It is Norfolk County’s intention that one Contractor will be awarded the work 
under this Tender, as identified in Section 1.4. 
 

20. Question:   
Permits will be necessary for development water for this contract.  Will the 
county have this available to continue the work as scheduled? 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Answer 3. 
 

21. Question:   
There appears to be uncertainty regarding the discharge of development 
water in connection with the local authorities, it appears they may or may not 
allow discharge to the nearby area.  If treatment becomes necessary and or 
discharge to the long-term pumping discharge point is needed. How can the 
contractor plan for this, as it is seems uncertain and no provisional items 
allow for this? 
 
Answer:  
As per Answer 10, the County will be responsible for obtaining any required 
permits for pumping and discharging water from the test production wells. 
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Often the development of a municipal-capacity overburden water well will 
produce water that contains sediment (i.e. aquifer material).  This is the 
purpose of well development.  With reference to Section A8. Municipal Test 
Production Well Drilling and Construction, Containment and Disposal of 
Cuttings and Water, the tender requires the Contractor to “fully contain the 
well development water to the immediate work area for controlled discharge 
to a location specified by the Engineer. This fluid shall be conveyed by the 
Contractor by means of secondary pumping or by gravity, as required, to a 
discharge point located up to 50 m (165 ft) from the drilling site, as designated 
by the Engineer.”  The intent of this requirement is to allow the sediment to 
settle in a contained area and for the discharge of the water to the adjacent 
area, thereby minimizing the risk to the local environment.  No other 
“treatment” of the water withdrawn from the test production well is expected 
and therefore has not been included as a Provisional Item.  The Contractor is 
to provide a price for this work as described in Section A8. 
 

22. Question:   
The logging requirements indicate some rather unusual instruments which are 
not readily available, (nuclear equipment) the contractor is assuming a 
significant risk.  What is the purpose of these logs? 
 
Answer:  
Refer to deletion and addition to Appendix H, Section A6 above. 
 

23. Question:   
What is the total timespan expected, to have the dataloggers in place?  Very 
few contractors or their subs will have 25 additional loggers on hand.  This is 
of interest for rental or purchase consideration. 
 
Answer:  
With reference to Appendix H, Section B3. Pumping Tests, General and 
Aquifer Performance Test; “at least two weeks prior to the aquifer 
performance test”, the duration of the aquifer performance test, and “all data 
loggers will remain in place and continue to record for two weeks following the 
end of the pumping period”. 
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24. Question:   
Can the discharge from sand free testing be discharged to the location used 
to expel drilling related water (50 m away)? 
 
Answer:  
Yes, following the same protocol as described for controlling development 
water. 
 

25. Question:   
Can water for drilling purposes be obtained from the existing test production 
well if the well is properly chlorinated prior to removing water, as long as more 
than 50,000 L/day is not removed? 
 
Answer:  
No.  Refer to Appendix H, Section A8 Municipal Test Production Well Drilling 
and Construction, Drilling Fluid; paragraph 2. 
 

26. Question:   
If a gravel pack well is deemed necessary, will additional funds be approved 
to drill an 18" hole instead of the hole diameter required to install the 12" 
casing for a natural pack well? 
 
Answer:  
The Schedule of Items & Prices (Appendix B) allows the Contractor to provide 
unit prices for their preferred method of well drilling and construction.  The 
diameter of the borehole has not been specified for this reason. 
 

27. Question:   
Under Item 5.6 Subcontractor it states: "Subcontractors shall be supervised 
on the job site at all times by a representative of the Contractor". Is this really 
necessary? This should be at the discretion of the Contractor. 
 
Answer:  
This requirement shall remain unchanged.  Any modification will be at the 
discretion of the County and the Engineer. 
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28. Question:   
Item A3 - Security Fencing.  Is the intent that this fencing will be present for 
the full extent of the project (i.e. the 55 days) or is it to be removed between 
well construction and reinstalled for test pumping? 
 
Answer:  
The fencing will remain in place for the duration of the project until site 
restoration commences. 
 

29. Question:   
Item A3 - Security Fencing.  The item reads "The location of the fence will be 
established and marked by the County". Please clarify the intended location 
of the fencing and what is the anticipated length required? 
 
Answer:  
The site of the new test production well is depicted as an area in 
Attachment ‘A’ of the Request for Tender.  It is anticipated that an 
approximately rectangle area will be established around the well site.  The 
shorter sides of the rectangle will be constrained to a length of about 15 m 
(49.5 ft) as shown in Attachment ‘A’.  The length of the longer sides of the 
rectangle will depend on the total area required for the Contractor’s 
equipment and materials.  As per Section 5.2, all Bidders should carefully 
examine the site of the work. 
 

30. Question:   
Item A7 indicates the requirement of centralizers on the well casing. 
Depending on the construction method they may not be required. Are these a 
requirement regardless of drilling/construction methodology? 
 
Answer:  
The use of centralizers will depend on the method of well drilling and 
construction.  With reference to Appendix H, Section A7 General; “The 
Contractor shall provide a shop drawing of the recommended well design and 
supporting information for review by the Engineer.” 
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31. Question:   
Item A7 Well Screen and Fittings - A naturally packed well design is indicated 
to be preferred. Would consideration given to a sand/gravel pack design well 
as a provisional item/option in the price schedule? As a larger diameter 
borehole and additional materials may be required. 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Answer 26. 
 

32. Question:   
Item A7 Well Screen and Fittings - What is the timeframe for the review of the 
well design by the Engineer? 
 
Answer:  
Reference should be made to Section 5.5; and also to Appendix H, 
Section A5 Grain Size Analysis for Well Screen Design and Section A7 
Municipal Test Production Well Design.  It is expected the review of well 
screen design by the Engineer can be completed within five business days, 
following receipt of a shop drawing of the recommended well design and 
supporting information. 
 

33. Question:   
Item A8 - If mud rotary is not used, would it be acceptable to place the drill 
cuttings and drilling water on the ground surface and contain/control over land 
with silt fences, bales, etc?  Where can the water from the drilling process be 
discharged? 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Appendix H, Section A8 Municipal Test Production Well Drilling and 
Construction, Subsections Drilling Fluid and Containment and Disposal of 
Cuttings and Water.  “The Contractor shall manage all water, drill cuttings and 
fluids generated during drilling and well development by containing these 
fluids in a suitable above ground reservoir.”  Water from the drilling process 
shall be managed following the same protocol as described for controlling 
development water. 
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34. Question:   
Item A10 states: " Water from the development process shall be discharged in 
a controlled manner so that overland flow to neighbouring properties and/or 
erosion do not occur." Please provide all bidders with as delineation of the 
property boundaries and possibly elevations, as well as the intended 
discharge area. 
 
Answer:  
Refer to Answer 29.  In addition, the intended discharge area is towards the 
wooded area south of the Site of New Test Well depicted on Attachment ‘A’.   
 

35. Question:   
What are the caps/lids for access on all the monitoring wells intended to be 
used for the test pumping? 
 
Answer:  
Existing monitoring wells are 50 mm diameter PVC pipe, equipped with “J-
plugs”, and completed with locked protective casings.  Also refer to 
Answer 12 regarding two other on-site test wells. 
 

 
End of Addendum  
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